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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries the “Group”), I am pleased to present the annual report (the “Annual Report”) of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW, BUSINESS STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

Since the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (2019) (COVID-19) pandemic (the “Pandemic”) in early 2020, governments of
various countries have implemented anti-pandemic measures for public health such as travel restrictions, temporary suspension
of tourism activities, and temporary closures and limitation of the number of visitors of tourism attractions and cultural spots.
These measures have inevitably affected the travel and tourism industries since the beginning of the Pandemic and were still in
force during the Year. As a result of the effective prevention and control measures put in place by the government of mainland
(“Mainland China”) of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) since the beginning of the Pandemic, the Pandemic has begun
to ease in Mainland China from the second quarter of 2020. Nevertheless, it is expected that outbound travel restrictions and
other prevention and control measures would still be in place until the full or substantially the full subside of the Pandemic, and
the timing of which is highly uncertain.

The Group’s diversified tourism products and services segment engages in the sales of outbound air tickets and provision of
outbound tourism-related services. Revenue of which further reduced from approximately HK$91.8 million during the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately HK$14.5 million during the Year owing to the outbound travel restrictions imposed since late
January 2020. Majority of the Group’s revenue from diversified tourism products and services segment during the year ended 31
December 2020 were derived from January 2020.

The Group’s integrated development segment served as an alternative business drive during the Year and the year ended 31
December 2020. Benefit from the effective prevention and control measures put in place by the government and the stable Pandemic
situation of Mainland China, the Group was able to carry out its business of operation and management of tourist attraction and
cultural spot in relatively a stable manner. Revenue of approximately HK$27.1 million (2020: approximately HK$29.8 million)
was recognised during the Year. Owing to the temporary closures of the facilities at certain times and the limitation of the number
of visitors in both years, revenue in both years remained at a lower level. On the other hand, the Group continues to facilitate
the development of other businesses in the integrated development segment that are less affected by the Pandemic since 2020.
Marketing, event planning and consulting services contributed revenue of approximately HK$26.5 million (2020: approximately
HK$40.8 million) to the Group during the Year. The decrease of revenue during the Year was mainly due to fewer marketing,
event planning and consulting services for real estate projects undertaken by the Group during the Year. In addition, during the
Year, the Group completed the disposal of the remaining portion of the piece of land located in New Zealand as detailed in the
section headed “Integrated Development Businesses” under “Business Review” in “Management Discussion and Analysis”, total
net gain on disposal of approximately New Zealand Dollar (“NZD”) 1.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$9.3 million) was
recognised as “profit for the year from discontinued operations” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the Year,
and the Group’s cash flow was further strengthened.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In addition to the Group’s diversified tourism products and services businesses and integrated development businesses, the Board
considers that the Group must take additional appropriate steps to cope with the unprecedented market change resulting from the
Pandemic. With an aim to broadening the Group’s income sources which in turn improve the financial performance of the Group and
achieve better return for the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the Company during the current unfavourable environment, the
Group has been exploring new income stream in the PRC since late July 2020. Leveraging on the business network of the Directors,
the Group is able to explore the feasibility of other business fields with stable domestic demand feature such as the provision of

products and services relating to property management and leasing, urban environmental hygiene and healthcare businesses.

Recent policies of the property management industry in the PRC continued to be positive. Pursuant to the notice issued by ten
government authorities including the Ministry of Housing and Urban- Rural Development of the PRC (H ## A R 311 57 {1 )5 F11 i
AR, in order to satisfy the public aspiration of better living quality and condition, the development of residential property
management industry shall be facilitated and the quality and diversification of services shall be enhanced. In particular, the notice
requires the local governments to regulate the relationship between governments and enterprises at the grassroots level, facilitate the
enhancement of scope of services, management and quality of property management services, support acquisition of the property
management companies, encourage market-based property management fees, etc., to develop a long-term effective management
mechanism of property management operations, pointing the way for healthy and long-term development of the industry.

On 18 May 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Shijiazhuang Dongsheng Property Management
Services Company Limited* (£ ¢ E i UM 3£ IR %A BR A 7], “Dongsheng PMS”), which, alongside its subsidiaries, are principally
engaged in the provision of property management and leasing services for residential and commercial properties in Hebei Province,
the PRC. Since completion of the acquisition, Dongsheng PMS contributed property management and leasing related revenue of
approximately HK$64.6 million to the Group during the Year. By completing the acquisition, the Group successfully entered into
the property management and leasing related businesses and has additional income sources that are less affected by the Pandemic

and with sound prospects.

The Group further expanded its leasing related business by completing the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Kinyoun
International Limited (“Kinyoun International”) on 9 August 2021 for the consideration of HK$24,000,000, which, alongside its
subsidiaries, are principally engaged in the sub-leasing business for non-residential properties in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province,
the PRC. Since completion of the acquisition, Kinyoun International contributed leasing related revenue of approximately HK$7.4
million to the Group during the Year.

In addition to the acquisitions of Dongsheng PMS and Kinyoun International, Orient Victory Property Development Group Co.,
Ltd.* (“OVPD”, ¥ P 5 Hi 22 B 85 4 [ FR A &) ), one of the Group’s controlling Shareholders, which, alongside its subsidiaries,
are principally engaged in the real estate development in the PRC, provided to the Group new business opportunities in relation
to the property management services for their real estate projects. On 1 December 2021, the Company and OVPD entered into
a framework agreement, pursuant to which, OVPD agreed to appoint the Group for the provision of the property management
services and the commercial properties and merchants management services for a term commencing on 1 December 2021 and ending
on 31 December 2023, providing for the Group further expansion on property management businesses. The services constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the independent Shareholders
had approved the respective framework agreement and transactions contemplated thereunder by way of poll at the extraordinary
general meeting dated 16 March 2022.

Further, the Group has been exploring business opportunities in environmental hygiene industry, and secured an environmental
hygiene service project in Zhangjiakou City, Hebei Province, the PRC in the fourth quarter in 2021. Revenue of approximately
HK$2.2 million (2020: nil) was recognised during the Year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Group has been paying close attention to and treating the ongoing situation of the Pandemic with great caution in the light
that timing of the full recovery for outbound tourism industry is highly uncertain under the Pandemic. In addition to the above
business developments, the Group had carried out various measures to encounter the impact of the Pandemic to the Group’s
existing businesses since the first quarter of 2020, which includes implementing cost containment plans, and monitoring and
strengthening the cash flows and the collection of receivables. In particular, (1) the Group’s wages, salaries and other benefits and
pension scheme contributions incurred during the Year reduced by 25% as compared to the corresponding period of last year;
and (2) the Group’s cash and cash equivalent further increased during the Year from approximately HK$179.3 million as at 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$255.2 million as at 31 December 2021, which was mainly attributable to (i) the completion
of disposal of the remaining portion of the piece of land located in New Zealand as detailed in the section headed “Integrated
Development Businesses” under “Business Review” in “Management Discussion and Analysis”; and (ii) the receipt of certain

refundable prepayments for investments of approximately HK$81.5 million.

The Pandemic had brought huge impact to the Group’s diversified tourism products and services businesses and the Group’s
tourism attractions business under the integrated development businesses during the Year. It is expected that the Pandemic will
continue to impact the tourism industry, and thus outbound travel and tourism businesses, being the Group’s main business focus
of the diversified tourism products and services segment, as well as the Group’s tourism attractions business under the integrated

development segment, will continue to be affected in 2022.

Despite the Pandemic, the tourism-related businesses are expected to be vigorous in a long run having considered the expected
steady improvement of the PRC economy and the continuous improvement of people’s living standard. The Group will closely
monitor the development of the Pandemic and the outbound tourism industry in order to enable the tourism-related businesses
to be back on track in a safe and effective manner.

The Group will also continue to take prudent and cautious steps for the development of other businesses in order to improve the

benefit of the Group and Shareholders in this challenging business environment.

In particular, for property management businesses, leverage on the extensive experience of certain Directors in property development
and management in the PRC, the Group will develop the property management and leasing services businesses by improving
the management and operation, seeking organic growth, strategic acquisitions and continuous support from the controlling
Shareholder. Meanwhile, in addition to the property management businesses, the Group will also prudently explore potentially
profitable investments and acquisitions in relation to urban environmental hygiene business and healthcare business, with an aim

to improving the benefit of the Group and its Shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I wish to express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders of the Company and business partners of the
Group for their continuous support, as well as to each member of the Board, management and all our staff members for their

diligence, devotions and contributions.

Shi Baodong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

* denotes an English translation of the Chinese name for identification purpose only.

6 Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited
Annual Report 2021



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property Management Businesses

The Group has been exploring property management business opportunities in the PRC since late July 2020. Pursuant to an equity
transfer agreement dated 8 February 2021 entered into between Huasheng New Life Services (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (#
o 0 A % IR (R YN A PR A W], “Huasheng New Life”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (as purchaser) and
Heng Sheng Xin Ye (Beijing) Asset Management Company Limited* (1 % £ 3 (b %) & A 45 A R 22 B], “Hengsheng Xinye”, an
independent third party of the Company) (as vendor), Hengsheng Xinye conditionally agreed to dispose of, and Huasheng New Life
conditionally agreed to acquire, the entire equity interest in Dongsheng PMS for the consideration of RMB7,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$9,139,000). Dongsheng PMS and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of property management
and leasing services for residential and commercial properties in Hebei Province, the PRC. It possesses certifications of the ISO9001
(Quality Management Systems), ISO14001 (Environmental Management Systems) and OHSAS18001 (Occupational Health and
Safety Assessment Series) and won various awards in past years, including the “2020 Top 500 Property Services Companies:
Comprehensive Strength*” (% 4% BEY) 36 IR A 3657 5 B J7500%8) and the “Top Ten Property Management Projects in Hebei
Province in 2019*” (ZF—JUH BEWAL A W) 38 BE-HEI H ). The acquisition was completed on 18 May 2021, and Dongsheng
PMS and its subsidiaries have become the Group’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries. Further details of the acquisition are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 8 February 2021 and 20 May 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, Dongsheng PMS and its subsidiaries had a total contracted gross floor area of approximately 8.5 million
square meters, of which a total gross floor area of approximately 7.6 million square meters was under their management. The
total gross floor area mainly involves residential properties, commercial properties, office buildings, sales offices and related areas,
hospitals, government and other public facilities. Revenue from property management and leasing services of approximately
HK$64.6 million was recognised by the Group during the Year since completion of the acquisition of Dongsheng PMS.

The Group further expanded its leasing related business by completing the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Kinyoun
International on 9 August 2021 for the consideration of HK$24,000,000, which, alongside its subsidiaries, are principally engaged
in the sub-leasing business for non-residential properties in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, the PRC. Since completion of the
acquisition, Kinyoun International contributed leasing related revenue of approximately HK$7.4 million to the Group during the
Year. Further details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 6 August 2021.

Integrated Development Businesses

The Group has been operating in the integrated development businesses since the acquisition of the entire interest in a piece of
land located at corner Miller Rise, Bankside Road, Millwater Parkway, Silverdale, Auckland, New Zealand with an aggregate area
of approximately 15,742 square meters in 2017. Construction of the first phase of the project was completed in 2019. All residential
units of the first phase of the project were sold and revenue of approximately HK$45.9 million from the sales of properties was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020. As all residential units of the first phase of the project were sold in 2020, no
revenue from the sales of properties of the first phase of the project was recognised during the Year. In respect of the remaining
portion of the piece of land (approximately 12,986 square meters), with an aim to improving the cash inflows, in December 2020,
the Group (as vendor) entered into two agreements for sale and purchase of real estate (the “Sale and Purchase Agreements”)
with an independent third party of the Company (as purchaser) to dispose of the remaining portion of the piece of land for a total
consideration of approximately NZD10.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$56.5 million). The disposal was completed in
May 2021 and total net gain on disposal of NZD1.7 million (equivalent to approximately HK$9.3 million) was recognised during
the Year. Pursuant to a shareholder resolution of Orient Victory New Zealand Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
dated 6 September 2021, as all the Group’s land and residential properties in New Zealand were disposed of by May 2021 and the
Group had no further investment and development plan in New Zealand, it was resolved to commence the liquidation procedures
of all the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in New Zealand. The liquidation procedures were completed on 5 November 2021.
Accordingly, results of the Group’s property development business in New Zealand were classified and presented as a discontinued
operation in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On the other hand, Hebei Tu Men Travel Development Limited* (Y-t 4 i B ¥ A R A w) (“Tu Men Travel”), which is
principally engaged in the operation and management of tourist attractions and cultural spots and owns a tourist attraction and
cultural spot in Shijiazhuang, the PRC, contributed revenue of approximately HK$27.1 million (2020: approximately HK$29.8
million) to the Group during the Year. Benefit from the effective prevention and control measures put in place by the government
and the stable Pandemic situation of Mainland China, the Group was able to carry out its business of operation and management
of tourist attraction and cultural spot in relatively a stable manner. Owing to the temporary closures of the facilities at certain times

and the limitation of the number of visitors in both years, revenue in both years remained at a lower level.

In addition, since 2019, the Group has been operating event planning and all-round event production services in respect of the
real estate development in the PRC, and has recruited a team of talents who were equipped with extensive experience in corporate
image building, brand management, marketing, event planning and public relations and communication. Revenue of approximately
HK$26.5 million (2020: approximately HK$40.8 million) was recognised during the Year. The decrease of revenue during the
Year was mainly due to fewer marketing, event planning and consulting services for real estate projects undertaken by the Group

during the Year.

The Group also engaged in the developments of tourism-related facilities in the PRC. During the Year, a piece of land in Shijiazhuang,
the PRC, with an aggregate area of 14,637 square meters, is under planning stage and was recognised as inventories in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021 in the carrying amount of approximately HK$15.8 million (2020:

approximately HK$15.0 million).

Besides, pursuant to an agreement dated 28 October 2021 entered into between the Group and a local government authority, a piece
of land in Shijiazhuang, the PRC with an aggregate area of approximately 21,647 square meters, which was recognised as inventories
in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020 in the carrying amount of approximately HK$102.3 million, was
returned to the local government during the Year for the consideration of approximately HK$102.2 million. Proceeds of HK$30.6

million was received during the Year and a further HK$24.5 million was received up to the date of this Annual Report in 2022.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution of Zhangjiakou Dakun Zhifang Real Estate Development Co., Limited* (54 H K3 H Ji 5
HoZE BB A R A F]) (“Dakun Zhifang”) passed on and the revised articles of association dated 3 September 2021, the composition
of the board of directors of Dakun Zhifang has been amended (the “Amendment”). Pursuant to the Amendment, the Directors
consider that the Group does not have the power to control the board of directors of Dakun Zhifang from that date onwards.
Accordingly, from 3 September 2021, Dakun Zhifang ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group and was accounted for using the equity
method as an associate in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Dakun Zhifang had a piece of land in Zhangjiakou, the
PRC with an aggregate area of 79,039 square meters, which was under preliminary development stage with “Certificate of Permitting
Construction and Engineering Planning*” (“& i LB ##F AT 3E”) obtained in September 2021. It was recognised as investment
properties and inventories in the books of Dakun Zhifang as at 31 December 2021 in the carrying amounts of approximately
HK$150.7 million and HK$103.0 million respectively (2020: in the Group’s consolidated financial statements of approximately
HK$139.4 million and HK$96.9 million respectively).

Pursuant to an agreement dated 6 September 2021 entered into between Dakun Zhifang and China Huarong Assets Management
Co., Ltd. Hebei Branch* (H 5 3% il ¥ 2 45 B A PR A b 4 43 A ) (“Hebei Huarong”), the piece of land held by Dakun
Zhifang (the “Pledge”), together with other assets owned by Mr. Shi Baodong (“Mr. Shi”), the controlling Shareholder, were pledged
to Hebei Huarong to secure the repayments of certain borrowings obtained by entities controlled by Mr. Shi in an aggregate
principal amount of RMB556.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$680.8 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s advances to Dakun Zhifang (which were made while it was a subsidiary of the Company)
(the “Advances”) of approximately HK$153.9 million are non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The obligations of Dakun Zhifang under the Pledge and the repayment of the Advances were guaranteed by the sales proceeds of
certain properties held by an entity controlled by Mr. Shi, which shall be remitted into an escrow bank account (the “Arrangement”).
As such, the directors of the Company consider that the risk associated with the Pledge and the credit risk arising from the Advances
are significantly mitigated by the Arrangement with reference to the estimated market value of the properties as at 31 December

2021 and that no provision is necessary.

Diversified Tourism Products and Services Businesses

Principal subsidiaries of the Group engaged in diversified tourism products and services businesses comprised (i) Four Seas Tours
Limited (PY43HRAT 44 FRA ), which engaged in the sale of outbound air-ticket and provision of other travel related services in
Hong Kong; and (ii) Dongsheng (Beijing) International Travel Co., Limited* CRIE AL B B 474147 BR A ®]) and Beijing Jinlv
Shidai Tourism Co. Limited* (43¢ &l Wi 47 4145 B A ), which engaged in the sales of outbound air tickets and provision
of outbound tourism-related services in the PRC.

Revenue from diversified tourism products and services businesses reduced from approximately HK$91.8 million during the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately HK$14.5 million during the Year. Outbound travel and tourism activities were severely
affected since early 2020 as a result of the Pandemic and the anti-pandemic measures imposed by the governments of various
countries. Majority of the Group’s revenue from diversified tourism products and services businesses during the year ended 31
December 2020 were derived from January 2020. The ongoing outbound travel restrictions imposed continued to adversely affect
the Group’s outbound travel businesses during the Year, resulting a further significant decrease in revenue from diversified tourism

products and services businesses during the Year as compared to the corresponding period of last year.

Investment Holding Business

During the year ended 31 December 2020, investment holding business included the Group’s 49% equity interest in China Comfort
Tourism Group Company Limited* ([ B jilc 2% 4 [ P 35 £ 2 7)) (“China Comfort”), a then associate of the Group, which
was engaging in the provision of travel agent services in the PRC, including domestic travel, outbound travel and inbound travel,
and provision of brand name for the franchisees. The disposal of the Group’s 49% equity interest in China Comfort was completed
in October 2020. Accordingly, share of loss of China Comfort of approximately HK$14.3 million and gain on disposal of China
Comfort of approximately HK$25.7 million recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 was classified as “profit for the
year from discontinued operations” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Details of the disposal of China Comfort are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 26 March 2020, 31 July 2020, 30 September 2020 and 15 October 2020, and the
Company’s circular dated 24 June 2020.

4|
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Operating Performance

a.

10

Continuing operations

Analysis by nature of revenue:

2021 2020
HK$’000 % HK$°000 %
(Restated) (Restated)
Diversified tourism products and services businesses:
Sales of air tickets and diversified tourism products,
provision of travel and other related services and
commission income 14,487 10.2 91,783 56.5
Integrated development businesses:
Sales of products and service income from tourism
attractions 27,058 19.0 29,806 18.4
Marketing, event planning and consulting services 26,521 18.6 40,840 25.1
Sub-total 53,579 37.6 70,646 43.5
Property management businesses:
Property management and leasing related services 74,206 52.2 - N/A
Total 142,272 100.0 162,429 100.0

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$142.3 million (2020: approximately HK$162.4 million (restated)) for the

Year, representing a decrease of approximately 12% as compared to the corresponding period of last year.

As aresult of the Pandemic, outbound travel and tourism activities has been severely affected since late January 2020. Majority
of the Group’s revenue from diversified tourism products and services segment during the year ended 31 December 2020
were derived from January 2020, and revenue for the Year remained at a low level.

The Group’s integrated development businesses served as an alternative revenue drive during the Year. Further details of
these business performance are set out in section headed “Integrated Development Businesses” under “Business Review” in

“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

The Group has commenced its property management businesses since completion of the acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Dongsheng PMS in May 2021, and had further expanded its leasing related business by completing the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in Kinyoun International in August 2021. Details of the business performance are set out in the

section headed “Property Management Businesses” under “Business Review” in “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit

The Group recorded gross profit of approximately HK$38.8 million (2020: approximately HK$25.0 million (restated)) for
the Year, representing an increase of approximately 55% as compared to the corresponding period of last year. The increase
in gross profit was primarily attributable to the commencement of property management businesses since May 2021 which
had a higher gross profit percentage as compared to the revenue from diversified tourism products and services businesses

and integrated development businesses.

The increase in gross profit percentage from 15% (restated) during the year ended 31 December 2020 to 27% during the
Year was mainly attributable to the increase in proportion of revenue from property management businesses to total revenue
during the Year, which had a higher gross profit percentage than that of the revenue from diversified tourism products and
services businesses and integrated development businesses.

Loss for the Year from continuing operations

Loss for the Year from continuing operations amounted to approximately HK$26.9 million (2020: approximately HK$59.4
million (restated)). The decrease was primarily attributable to (1) the segment profit of the property management businesses
of approximately HK$7.9 million (2020: nil) during the Year; (2) the recognition of impairment of goodwill attributable to
the businesses of Jinlv Shidai and Tu Men Travel in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$15.4 million during the year
ended 31 December 2020; and (3) the decrease in finance costs in connection with interest-free loans from non-controlling

shareholders of a subsidiary of approximately HK$9.6 million owing to the settlement of respective loans in 2020.

Discontinued operations

Included in profit for the year from discontinued operations for both years were the results of the below businesses:

(1)  the business of China Comfort, a then associate which was disposed of by the Group in October 2020. Upon completion
of the disposal, share of loss of China Comfort of approximately HK$14.3 million and gain on disposal of China Comfort
of approximately HK$25.7 million recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020 were classified as “profit for

the year from discontinued operations” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss; and

(2) the Group’s property development business in New Zealand. Pursuant to a shareholder resolution of Orient Victory
New Zealand Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company dated 6 September 2021, as all the Group’s land and
residential properties in New Zealand were disposed of by May 2021 and the Group had no further investment and
development plan in New Zealand, it was resolved to commence the liquidation procedures of all the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries in New Zealand. The liquidation procedures were completed on 5 November 2021. Accordingly,
results of the Group’s property development business in New Zealand (with net profit of approximately HK$6.2 million
(2020: approximately HK$3.1 million) for the Year) were classified and presented as a discontinued operation in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, and the comparative figures of the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and corresponding notes have been
restated to reflected the discontinued operation separately from continuing operations. The increase in net profit of
the property development business in New Zealand during the Year was primarily attributable to the recognition of
net gain on disposal of the remaining portion of the piece of land located in New Zealand of approximately HK$9.3
million (2020: nil), details of which are set out in the section headed “Integrated Development Businesses” under
“Business Review” in “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Assets Structure

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group’s assets mainly included property, plant and equipment, investment

properties, interest in an associate, inventories, trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables and advances to

an associate, restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents, and assets held for sale, details of which are set out below:

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

12

Property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$137.9 million (2020: approximately HK$131.4 million) as at 31 December
2021 mainly represented properties and other equipment of the tourist attraction and cultural spot owned by Tu Men Travel

in the net carrying amount of approximately HK$129.1 million (2020: approximately HK$128.9 million).

Investment properties of approximately HK$100.6 million (2020: approximately HK$139.4 million) as at 31 December 2021
represented fair values of the right-of-use assets of non-residential properties located in Shijiazhuang and Xingtai, Hebei
Province, the PRC leased by Dongsheng PMS and subsidiaries of Kinyoun International from property owners to earn rentals
of approximately HK$100.6 million (2020: nil). The decrease in total balance of investment properties was attributable to the
net effect of the recognition of the above-mentioned right-of-use-assets and the deconsolidation of the piece of land of Dakun
Zhifang in the carrying amount of approximately HK$139.4 million recognised as investment properties as at 31 December
2020 from 3 September 2021, details of which are set out in the section headed “Integrated Development Businesses” under

“Business Review” in “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Interest in an associate of approximately HK$32.9 million (2020: nil) as at 31 December 2021 represented the Group’s
40% equity interest in Dakun Zhifang, which ceased to be the Group’s subsidiary and became the Group’s associate since
3 September 2021, details of which are set out in the section headed “Integrated Development Businesses” under “Business

Review” in “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

Inventories of approximately HK$16.4 million (2020: approximately HK$214.6 million) as at 31 December 2021 mainly
represented carrying amount of the piece of land in Shijiazhuang, the PRC with an aggregate area of 14,637 square meters
under planning stage of approximately HK$15.8 million (2020: approximately HK$15.0 million). The decrease in total balance
of inventories was mainly attributable to (1) the return of the piece of land in Shijiazhuang, the PRC with an aggregate
area of approximately 21,647 square meters in the carrying amount of approximately HK$102.3 million as at 31 December
2020, details of which are set out in the section headed “Integrated Development Businesses” under “Business Review” in
“Management Discussion and Analysis”; and (2) the deconsolidation of the piece of land of Dakun Zhifang in the carrying
amount of approximately HK$96.9 million recognised as inventories as at 31 December 2020 from 3 September 2021, details
of which are set out in the section headed “Integrated Development Businesses” under “Business Review” in “Management

Discussion and Analysis”.

Trade receivables of approximately HK$30.6 million (2020: approximately HK$19.7 million) as at 31 December 2021 were
mainly derived from the marketing, event planning and consulting services under the integrated development segment
of approximately HK$11.7 million (2020: approximately HK$18.9 million) and the property management businesses of
approximately HK$14.2 million (2020: nil). The increase in trade receivables was mainly attributable to the combined effect
of the collection of trade receivables and the acquisition of Dongsheng PMS during the Year.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables and advances to an associate of approximately HK$314.6 million (2020:
approximately HK$109.7 million) as at 31 December 2021 mainly represented (1) receivables of approximately HK$73.4
million (2020: nil) for the return of the piece of land in Shijiazhuang, the PRC with an aggregate area of approximately
21,647 square meters as detailed in the section headed “Integrated Development Businesses” under “Business Review” in
“Management Discussion and Analysis”; (2) loans to certain independent third parties of the Company in an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$61.2 million (2020: nil) which were subsequently settled on 4 January 2022; and (3) the Advances of
approximately HK$153.9 million (2020: nil).
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vii.  Restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents were approximately HK$256.6 million (2020: approximately HK$181.5
million) as at 31 December 2021. The increase was mainly attributable to the combined effect of (1) the receipt of consideration
for the disposal of the remaining portion of the piece of land located in New Zealand of approximately HK$56.5 million; (2)
the receipt of certain refundable prepayments for investments of approximately HK$81.5 million; and (3) loans provided to

certain independent third parties of the Company in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$61.2 million.

viii. Assets held for sale as at 31 December 2020 represented the remaining portion of the piece of land located in New Zealand
as detailed in section headed “Integrated Development Businesses” under “Business Review” in “Management Discussion
and Analysis”, which was disposed of in May 2021.

Liabilities Structure

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group’s liabilities mainly included trade payables and contract liabilities,
other payables and accruals and lease liabilities, details of which are set out below:

i. Trade payables and contract liabilities were approximately HK$65.0 million (2020: approximately HK$36.4 million) as at
31 December 2021. The increase was mainly attributable to the acquisitions of Dongsheng PMS and Kinyoun International,
resulting in an increase in receipts in advance from customers from property management businesses by approximately
HK$25.6 million in aggregate as compared to 31 December 2020.

ii.  Other payables and accruals of approximately HK$94.0 million (2020: approximately HK$92.6 million) as at 31 December
2021 mainly consisted of consideration payable regarding the acquisition of Tu Men Travel of approximately HK$32.0 million
(2020: approximately HK$37.7 million), and land and construction costs payable of approximately HK$10.7 million (2020:
approximately HK$21.9 million).

iii.  Lease liabilities of approximately HK$71.5 million (2020: approximately HK$2.2 million) as at 31 December 2021 mainly
comprised lease liabilities of the right-of-use assets of non-residential properties located in Shijiazhuang and Xingtai, Hebei
Province, the PRC leased by Dongsheng PMS and subsidiaries of Kinyoun International from property owners to earn rentals
of approximately HK$67.3 million (2020: nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies and controls tightly over its cash and risk management. During the Year, the

Group’s operations and investments were supported by internal resources.

Asat 31 December 2021, the Group had a current ratio of approximately 3.7 (2020: approximately 4.4). All the Group’s short-term
borrowings and long-term borrowings were settled in 2020 and as such gearing ratio (calculated by dividing net debt (defined
as short-term borrowings and long-term borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents) by total equity) was not applicable to the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operate in the PRC with most of the transactions denominated and settled in RMB.
Fluctuations of exchange rates would impact the Group’s net asset value due to currency translation in the preparation of the Group’s
consolidated accounts. If RMB appreciates/depreciates against HK$, the Group would record a(n) increase/decrease in the Group’s

net asset value. During the Year, the Group has not used derivative financial instruments to hedge against its foreign currency risk.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitment relating to the investment in an equity security of approximately
HK$18.3 million (2020: the investments in equity securities and developments of investment properties of approximately HK$419.6

million in aggregate).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, INVESTMENTS AND DISPOSAL

On 4 March 2021, the Group entered into an investment agreement with a bank and subscribed for a structured product in the sum
of RMB90,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$108,134,000) on 5 March 2021. On 31 March 2021, the Group requested the
bank to redeem the structured product at the redemption price of RMB90,151,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$108,316,000).
Details of the subscription and redemption are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 13 April 2021.

On 18 May 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Dongsheng PMS. Further details of the
acquisition are set out in the section headed “Property Management Businesses” under “Business Review” in “Management

Discussion and Analysis”.

On 9 August 2021, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Kinyoun International. Further details of
the acquisition are set out in the section headed “Property Management Businesses” under “Business Review” in “Management

Discussion and Analysis”.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant investments, material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated

companies during the Year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Asat 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group pledged the entire equity interest in Hua Yu New Life Services (Shenzhen)
Company Limited* (T A 56 IR G YDA PR A 5], an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the entire issued
share capital of Donghui Hong Kong Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to secure the issue
of the perpetual convertible securities issued on 30 March 2016 with an aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$70.0
million, details of which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2016 and the Company’s circular dated 29

January 2016.

MATERIAL CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of employees of the Group was approximately 680 (2020: approximately 190). Staff
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) of approximately HK$22.6 million (2020: approximately HK$30.0 million (restated))

were incurred during the Year.

In addition to salary, other fringe benefits such as medical insurance and mandatory provident fund schemes for employees, are
offered to all employees of the Group. Performance of the employees is normally reviewed on an annual basis with adjustment to
their salaries comparable to that of the market. Individual employees may also receive a discretionary bonus at the end of each

year based on their individual performance.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year (2020: nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

Notice of payment of eleventh distribution of the unlisted perpetual convertible securities

Reference is made to the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 September 2016 in relation to the open offer of offered
shares with an alternative of unlisted perpetual convertible securities on the basis of one offered share for every five ordinary
shares held on 28 September 2016.

As detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 9 March 2022, the eleventh distribution at the distribution rate of 6% per

annum on the perpetual convertible securities will be made to the convertible securities holders on 25 April 2022.

Acquisition of commercial units located at Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province, the PRC

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreements (pre-sale) all dated 20 January 2022 (as supplemented on 20 January 2022) entered
into between Hebei Qifuqgianyue Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.* (b4 1 5z 15 5 b BH 85 PR A W) (“Qifuqianyue”,
which is owned as to 51% by OVPD (which is wholly-owned by Mr. Shi)) and Dongsheng PMS, Dongsheng PMS agreed to
acquire, and Qifuqianyue agreed to sell, 47 commercial units with an estimated aggregate gross floor area of approximately
2,563 square meters located at 17th Floor and 18th Floor, building no. 1, Zijingyuehe Centre (South zone), 2 Fengya Road,
Changan District, Shijiazhuang City, Hebei Province, the PRC* (H B b 48 7 S HE T (=R 2 [ ML AfE 1 2 5% 5% i e A oo T i),
for a total consideration of RMB22,876,305 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,980,000). Up to the date of this Annual
Report, Qifugianyue had completed the filing procedures (i.e. the online signing and record uploaded) of the sale and purchase
agreements and Dongsheng PMS had settled the consideration.

* denotes an English translation of the Chinese name for identification purpose only.
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DIRECTORS
Mr. Shi Baodong (“Mr. Shi”)

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Shi, aged 53, was appointed as the chairman of the Company and an executive Director in September 2014, and the chief
executive officer of the Company on 11 May 2018. Mr. Shi is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”). Mr.
Shi graduated from the Hebei University of Architecture in 1989. He has over 22 years of experience in properties development

and is a qualified engineer in the PRC.

Mr. Shi is the founder of OVPD and its subsidiaries, which were established since 1999 and are principally engaged in the urban
renewal business with seven core strategic focuses, including the real estate, commerce, properties, health care, scenic spots, tourism
and education, covering the fields of tourism, health and education. Mr. Shi is the founder, shareholder and chairman of Orient
Victory Cultural Tourism Group Co., Limited* (S LR 4R B4 FR A F]), which is principally engaged in the provision of
tourism services and the operation and management businesses for scenic spots in the PRC, and including the developments of
ecological agriculture, elderly care and sports-related projects, and the businesses of properties development, properties management

services and leasing related services.

Mr. Shi is the director of Orient Victory Group HK Holdings Limited, chairman of OVPD, chairman of Orient Victory Cultural
Tourism Group Co., Limited* (F M ALk 42 4 H 4 B A7), chairman of Comfort Cultural Tourism Industry Group Co., Ltd.*
(%ﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁj) and vice chairman of China Comfort. In addition, Mr. Shi is the honorary vice chairman
of China Real Estate Industry Association, chairman of Shijiazhuang City Real Estate Industry Association* (1 Z<HET 5 Hh & 2E
%) and vice president of Chinese Rowing Association.

Mr. Mo Yueming (“Mr. Mo”)

Executive Director

Mr. Mo, aged 57, was appointed as an executive Director on 2 May 2018. Mr. Mo holds a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration from the HEC school of Management in Paris, France, a Master’s degree in Business in Economics GE3 8L )
from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (H1 B4 & F}8:5E) and a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting from Beijing Institute of
Business* (b 5% #£L5%).

Mr. Mo has over 20 years of experience in accounting and corporate management of the tourism industry and other industries,
including working as the vice general manager and Chief Accountant of China Pan Travel Industry Development Co., Ltd.* (!
32 iR B S B A A TR A F]) (now known as China Spacesat Co., Ltd. (¥ [ R Hb i B2 B4 A FR 24 F]) (“China Spacesat”)), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code 600118 and Mr. Mo has been a director of China Spacesat since
June 2001; Mr. Mo has been a director of Zhejiang Yongfeng Environmental Sci&tech Co., Ltd. (#ivL 7K I BR PR B A7 PR 2
7]), a company listed on National Equities Exchange and Quotations with stock code 838806 since 23 February 2016 for a term
from 23 February 2016 to 22 February 2019; and the senior vice president of Orient Landscape Holdings Co., Ltd.* (3 J5 Ak
#324 7)) and the Chief Operating Officer of Orient Brigade Group* (3 J7 (RS2 E) from 28 April 2017 to 27 November 2017.
Besides, Mr. Mo was the president of Orient Victory Culture & Travel Group* (BB U ALk 245 #) that was controlled by Mr.
Shi, and Comfort Cultural Tourism Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (R AL it A s S5 4R 1 IR A A BR A 7)), of which China Comfort
is the largest equity holder, from March 2018 to March 2019.

Mr. Mo currently serves as a co-vice chairman of Orient Victory Group* (K B3 4 ) that was controlled by Mr. Shi and has been
a director of China Comfort since April 2018. Further, since 2020, Mr. Mo serves as the chairman of Beijing Dora Aimeng Travel
Development Holding Co., Ltd.* (Ab% % $i 52 Wi ik i B 8 it % A B A H] ) and Beijing Dongfu Petroleum Technology Co., Ltd.*
(LR F B R A ).
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Mr. Zhao Huining (“Mr. Zhao”)

Executive Director

Mr. Zhao, aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director on 16 June 2017. Mr. Zhao was the chief executive officer of the
Company and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, and resigned on 11 May 2018 and 24
August 2018 respectively. Mr. Zhao graduated from the Transportation Management and Engineering Department (% #i % #1 T
F2Z&) of Northern Jiaotong University (4t 75 38 K22), majoring in traffic and transportation* (38 B E B 3) in 1990. In 2004,
Mr. Zhao obtained a master degree of Arts from Flinders University of South Australia in International Relations in Economy
and Trade which were jointly offered by Nankai University (# Pl X&) and Flinders University of South Australia, and graduated
from Yanshan University (%1l K%2) with a doctor’s degree in management science and engineering (% B A 22 5L Tf2) in 2014.
Mr. Zhao was conferred the title of senior economist qualification in PRC in 2002.

Mr. Zhao has extensive working experiences, including working as a staff member in Project Evaluation Division of Mechanical
and Electrical Equipment Tendering Bureau of Hebei Province* (Wt # T &M #EE R AR IR ) from 1990 to 1992; staff
member and senior staff member of the Traffic, Post and Telecommunications Division of Hebei Provincial Economic and Trade
Commission* (b4 48 B 28 M T 7 & ) from 1992 to 1997; deputy director of Beijing office of Hebei Provincial Economic and
Trade Commission* (/AL A HE ZAL I HEF IR ) from 1997 to 1998; deputy director of Foreign Economic Relations Division of
Hebei Provincial Economic and Trade Commission* (/b4 8 & ZAMEJE ) (‘HPETC”) from 1998 to 2000; deputy director of the
office of HPETC and director of Beijing office of HPETC from 2000 to 2001 successively; legal representative, executive director
and general manager of Hebei Economic and Trade Investment Co., Ltd.* (L #K ¥ & & A R A F]) from 2001 to 2005
successively; legal representative, executive director, general manager and secretary of Party Committee of Hebei Information
Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (4t 4 AR E A BRAF]) from 2005 to 2009 successively. He was elected as the vice chairman
of the tenth session of the committee of Hebei Youth League* (W4t & 4E I ) in December 2009. From 2009 to 2014, Mr. Zhao
worked in Hebei Construction & Investment Group Co., Ltd* (b8 5% # & 48 [H 4 Bt B % 2 7)) with last position as chairman
and secretary for the Party Committee. He was also the chairman and president of Gaokang Capital Investment Management Co.,
Ltd (B REE AR B A B PR A 7)), a subsidiary of China Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Group* ([ i
HEBR R A ) from 2014 to 2016. Mr. Zhao is currently a director and the president of China Culture Industry Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd (P B iR S E R E RS EPAF]), a subsidiary of the Group.

Ms. Song Sining (“Ms. Song”)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Song, aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 16 June 2017. Ms. Song is a member of the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”). Ms. Song graduated from the Philosophy Department (/22 &) of Hebei University in Public
Relation (A B EE3E) in 1997. She graduated from the Correspondence College of the Central School of Communist Party of China*
(I FAL R FZ BB ) in 2000, majoring in economic management (XL 3E). She completed a practical training course in
real estate (‘B B2 55 # 2 WFIE BE) provided by Peking University in 2015. Ms. Song served as a senior management in other real

estate companies for more than 15 years. She is currently a vice president of OVPD, a company indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Shi.

Mr. Dong Xiaojie (“Mr. Dong”)

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Dong, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in September 2014, Mr. Dong is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Dong graduated from the Hebei Normal University, majoring in mathematics in 1984. Mr.
Dong was the chairman of Hebei Shengyuan Asset Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (-t /A% 70 % 2 45 Bk #A B A 7)) for
the period from April 2005 to October 2010. Moreover, he was the chairman of Beijing Old Street Shengyuan Venture Capital
Management Co., Ltd. * (b % & 85 8% 70 Gl £ 4 & 5 A PR 7)) for the period from April 2010 to September 2014. For the period
from February 2015 to August 2016, Mr. Dong was a director of Robyn Hode Capital Limited. He is the president of Zhangjiakou
Financial Holding Group Co., Ltd. * (3% I & % Bt 58 B A B2 5]) since July 2016.
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Mr. He Qi (“Mr. He”)

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. He, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in September 2014. Mr. He is a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. He has been an independent non-executive director of China Merchants Land
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 978), since 2013. He has also been an independent non-executive
director of China Evergrande Group, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3333), since 2009. Mr. He was the
deputy secretary of China Real Estate Association for the period from 2006 to 2016. Mr. He is currently a secretary of Real Estate
in Distribution and Rental Committee of China Real Estate Association.

Mr. Suei Feng-jih (“Mr. Suei”)

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Suei, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 25 June 2018. Mr. Suei is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Suei graduated from National
Cheng-Chi University (B 57 Bif K E2), Taiwan with a Bachelor degree of Science in Banking in June 1993. In June 2005, he was
awarded the Executive Master of Business Administration in Finance from National Central University (7. WL KB, Taiwan and

was further awarded the Master of Business Administration from University of Glasgow, the United Kingdom in September 2006.

Mr. Suei has extensive experience in finance industry. He is licensed to carry on type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. From July 2019, he serves as a general manager of ZJKF Securities Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited. Moreover. Mr. Suei was a director of ACF International Insurance Broker Co., Limited for the period from
August 2016 to February 2019. During the period from November 2009 to April 2010, Mr. Suei was the Head of Product Team, of
Wealth Management at Taishin International Bank Co., Ltd (Hong Kong). During the period from September 2010 to June 2019,
Mr. Suei was a responsible officer of Pamirs Capital (H.K.) Limited and in charge of the supervision of type 1 (dealing in securities),
type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Before that, from April 2007 to November 2009,
he worked for KGI Wealth Management Limited with his last position as a responsible officer for type 1 (dealing in securities),
type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO. Besides, Mr. Suei worked at the

trust division of Taipei Fubon Bank as assistant vice president during the period from October 2001 to December 2006.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Liu Kin Wai (“Mr. Liu”)

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Mr. Liu, age 40, was appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company in December 2019 and the company secretary of the
Company in January 2021. He obtained his bachelor’s degree in Accounting from City University of Hong Kong in November
2003 and completed China Environmental Industry Senior Manager Training Programme (H [ 33 358 78 3 w5 A &8 B A B BE)
organised by Tsinghua University (7§ # KX %&) in December 2016. Mr. Liu has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a certified public accountant since 2008 and has more than 15 years of experience in assurance
services and financial, capital management and company secretarial works. From 2004 to 2015, he had worked in an international
assurance firm with last position as a senior manager. From May 2015 to September 2016, he had served as a senior manager of
Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited (stock code: 371), a company listed on the Stock Exchange and from September 2016
to September 2019, he had served as the chief financial officer and company secretary of Beijing Enterprises Clean Energy Group
Limited (stock code: 1250), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, Mr. Liu has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Bright Future Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 1351), a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
with effect from 11 November 2020.

* denotes an English translation of the Chinese name for identification purpose only.
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The Board hereby presents the Report of the Directors and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company was an investment holding company and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in the property
management and leasing services businesses for residential and commercial properties, the diversified tourism products and services

businesses and the integrated development businesses.

FAIR REVIEW OF BUSINESS

The business review of the Group for the Year as required under Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), including a review of the business and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
particulars of important events affecting the Group that have been occurred since the end of financial year 2021 and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business are set out in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion
and Analysis from pages 4 to 6 and pages 7 to 15 of this Annual Report respectively. These discussions form part of this report of
the Directors.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group had complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 45 of this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant laws,

rules and regulations and subject to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”).

Provided there are distributable profits and without affecting the operations of the Group, the Company may consider to declare
and pay dividends to the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the Company. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, including but not limited to: (i) the general financial condition
of the Group; (ii) working capital and debt level of the Group; (iii) future cash requirements and availability for business operations,
business strategies and future development needs; (iv) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s

lenders; (v) the general market conditions; and (vi) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands

and the Articles of Association.
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year (2020: nil).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 126 of
this Annual Report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the investment properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are set out

in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set out in note 30(b) to the consolidated financial

statements.

PERPETUAL CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

Details of the perpetual convertible securities of the Company during the Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial

statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the Year, save as disclosed in this Annual Report, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association or the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the Year are set out in note 30(a) to the consolidated

financial statements and on page 50 in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$236,869,000 (2020: approximately HK$246,907,000), calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 35% of the total purchases
and purchase from the largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately 12% of the total purchases. The revenue of
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 34% of the total revenue and the revenue of the largest customer
included therein accounted for approximately 29% of the total revenue. During the Year and for the year ended 31 December
2020, revenue from the largest customer represents the aggregate revenue derived from companies controlled by the ultimate

controlling Shareholder.

Save as the aforementioned, none of our Directors or any of their respective close associates or, any Shareholder (so far as our
Directors were aware, who owned 5% or more of our issued share capital as at 31 December 2021), had any interest in any of our
five largest suppliers or our five largest customers in 2020 and 2021.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shi Baodong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Mo Yueming
Mr. Zhao Huining

Non-executive Director:

Ms. Song Sining

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Dong Xiaojie
Mr. He Qi
Mr. Suei Feng-jih

In accordance with Articles 116 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if such number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting. The Company’s forthcoming circular for annual general meeting will contain the detailed information of the Directors

standing for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 16 to 18 of this Annual Report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the change
of the information of the Directors is as follows:

On 24 December 2021, the Company and Mr. Shi entered into a new service agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Shi shall be entitled

to a director’s remuneration at the rate of HK$3,000,000 per annum commencing on 1 January 2022.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, there was no change to information which is required to be disclosed and has been

disclosed by the Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

Pursuant to Article 179 of the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or

criminal, in which judgement is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of
the independent non-executive Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent since the date of their
respective appointment date and as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company still considers the independent non-executive

Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF APPOINTMENTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the general meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2012, the shareholders approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “2012 Option Scheme”) and became effective on 11 June 2012. No share option has been granted under the 2012 Option
Scheme since its adoption.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there was no contract of significance entered into between the Company or its holding
companies or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries for the Year.

For the Year, save as disclosed in this Annual Report, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries has entered into any contract

of significance for the provision of services by any controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, none of the Directors or entities connected with the Directors had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the

Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, on the grounds of the Group’s operating results, individual performance of the

Directors and senior management and comparable market practices.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 respectively to the

consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report.

For the Year, Mr. Shi Baodong agreed to waive his Director’s remuneration of HK$1.92 million (2020: Mr. Shi Baodong and Mr.
Zhao Huining agreed to waive their Director’s remuneration of HK$0.02 million and HK$1.29 million respectively).

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, none of the Directors have waived their emoluments in relation to their services respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the ordinary
shares (the “Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) (i) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including long and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company; or (iii) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Approximate

Number of Shares/ percentage of

underlying shares of shareholding in

Name of Director Capacity the Company held the Company

(Note 3)

Mr. Shi Interest in a controlled 10,035,751,816 77.66%
corporation (Note 1)

Beneficial owner 130,239,145 1.01%
(Note 2)

Mr. Dong Xiaojie Beneficial owner 2,014,285 0.02%

Notes:

1. Mr. Shi holds 100% equity interest in Orient Victory Real Estate Group Holdings Limited (“OVRE”) and is deemed to be interested in the
10,035,751,816 shares of the Company held by OVRE under the SFO. The interests include the holding of (i) 7,844,262,880 Shares; (ii) the
perpetual convertible securities issued in March 2016 (the “2016 March PCS”) convertible into 128,771,155 Shares; and (iii) the perpetual
convertible securities issued in October 2016 (the “2016 October PCS”) convertible into 2,062,717,781 Shares.

2. Mr. Shi beneficially owns 130,239,145 Shares as at 31 December 2021.

3} The approximate percentage was calculated based on 12,922,075,516 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company has or is deemed to have
any long or short position in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including long and short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register maintained

by the Company; or (iii) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the following entities (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate

Number of Shares/ percentage of

underlying shares of shareholding in

Name of Shareholder Capacity the Company held the Company

(Note 4)

OVRE (Note 1) Beneficial owner 10,035,751,816 77.66%

Outstanding Global Holdings Limited =~ Person having security interest in 6,501,273,713 50.31%

(“OGH”) (Note 2) shares of the Company

Chance Talent Management Limited Person having security interests in 6,630,044,868 51.31%

(“CTM”) (Note 3) shares and perpetual convertible

securities of the Company

Notes:

1. OVRE is wholly-owned by Mr. Shi. The interests include the holding of (i) 7,844,262,880 Shares; (ii) the 2016 March PCS convertible into
128,771,155 Shares; and (iii) the 2016 October PCS convertible into 2,062,717,781 Shares.

2. OGH is wholly-owned by China Huarong International Holdings Limited which is indirectly wholly-owned by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (a corporation listed on the Stock Exchange). The 6,501,273,713 Shares, comprise security interest in 6,501,273,713
Shares pledged by OVRE.
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3. CTM is a limited liability business company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands and an indirectly wholly-owned special

purpose vehicle of CCB International (Holdings) Limited. CCB International (Holdings) Limited is an investment services flagship which is

indirectly wholly-owned by China Construction Bank Corporation, a joint-stock company incorporated in the PRC and listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0939) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601939). The 6,630,044,868 shares of the
Company, in aggregate, comprise security interests in (i) 6,501,273,713 Shares pledged by OVRE; and (ii) the 2016 March PCS (convertible
into 128,771,155 Shares) pledged by OVRE.

4. The approximate percentage was calculated based on 12,922,075,516 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company are not aware of any other

person or corporation having an interest or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would require

to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which

were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the Year and up to the date of this Annual Report, the following Director(s) is/are considered to have interests in the

following businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other

than those businesses where the Director(s) of the Company was/were appointed as directors or represent the interests of the

Company and/or the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

Name of Director

Name of entity which were
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the business of the Group

Description of

competing business

Nature of interest

Mr. Shi

Orient Victory Group HK Holdings
Limited
SR 4 B 7 s P A PR 28 )
(“OVHK”) (Note 1)

OVPD
(R 5 1 B g SR A B H])
(Note 1)

Hebei Jianing Commercial
Management Co., Limited*
(L 3% S 7 6 A B BR A WD)
(Note 2)

Hebei Orient Victory Commercial
Management Co., Limited*
(AL SRS e S A B A D)
(Note 2)

Real estate/Property

development

Sole director and

sole shareholder

Real estate/Property Sole shareholder
development

Commercial property Sole shareholder
management

Commercial property Sole shareholder
management
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Notes:

As (i) Mr. Shi is fully aware of his fiduciary duty to the Group, and will abstain from voting on any matter where there is or may be a conflict
of interest; and (ii) the Group have the right of first refusal on any travel-related property development projects, the Group is capable of
carrying its business independently of and at arm’s length from the businesses of these entities.

As (i) Mr. Shi is fully aware of his fiduciary duty to the Group, and will abstain from voting on any matter where there is or may be a
conflict of interest; and (ii) the Group have the right of first refusal on any further projects relating to the property management services
and commercial properties and merchants management services, the Group is capable of carrying its business independently of and at arm’s
length from the businesses of these entities.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or any of their respective close associates

had engaged in or had any interest in any business which causes or may cause any competition with the business of the Group or

any conflicts with the interests of the Group.

CcO

NTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED

TRANSACTION

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions which were subject to reporting, annual review

and announcement requirements and, where required, circular and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(1)

26

Service Agreement with HK Four Seas Tours Limited (7 P9 i {7 # 7 B 4\ 7]) (“HK Four Seas”)

On 24 September 2021, Four Seas Tours Limited (P4 74t BR2AF]) (“Four Seas”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and HK Four Seas renewed the service agreement dated 30 September 2020 which expired on 3
September 2021 (the “Expired Service Agreement”) by entering into the renewed service agreement (the “Renewed Service
Agreement”) for a term of one year from 4 September 2021 to 3 September 2022 (both dates inclusive). Pursuant to the
Renewed Service Agreement, HK Four Seas shall continue granting a licence to Four Seas for the use of trademarks owned
by HK Four Seas and HK Four Seas shall, at cost, sell to Four Seas air tickets which are purchased from the International Air
Transport Association and such other agencies. Four Seas has agreed that it shall purchase a minimum of 1,000 air tickets
from HK Four Seas every 3 months during the term (the “Minimum Air Tickets”) and the average minimum purchase price
of each of the Minimum Air Tickets shall be HK$3,400 (collectively the “Services”).

As Four Seas is owned as to 35% by Four Seas Travel (BVI) Limited (“Four Seas BVI”) and HK Four Seas is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Four Seas BVI, HK Four Seas is a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Expired Service Agreement and the Renewed Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. According to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules, the continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the Expired Service Agreement and the Renewed Service Agreement are subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but are exempt from the circular, independent financial advice and
shareholders” approval requirements. For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 24 September 2021
and 30 September 2021.
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For the Services, the Company has set annual caps in the sum of HK$12.86 million for the period from 4 September 2021 to
31 December 2021 and HK$26.58 million for the period from 1 January 2022 to 3 September 2022. The aggregate transaction
amount under the Expired Service Agreement for the period from 1 January 2021 to 3 September 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$6.5 million and the aggregate transaction amount under the Renewed Service Agreement for the period

from 4 September 2021 to 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$5.1 million.

The Directors confirm that the aggregate transaction amounts under the Expired Service Agreement and the Renewed Service

Agreement for the Year had not exceeded their respective annual caps for the periods.

Framework Agreements with OVPD

On 28 November 2019, the Company and OVPD entered into an event planning framework agreement (the “Event Planning
Framework Agreement”) for the provision of event planning and all-round event production services (the “Event Planning
Services”) in connection with the real estate development business of OVPD and its subsidiaries (collectively the “OVPD
Group”) in the PRC by the Group to the OVPD Group for the period from 28 November 2019 to 30 September 2022. Details
of the Event Planning Framework Agreement are set out in the Company’s circular dated 10 January 2020.

On 1 December 2021, the Company entered into a new framework agreement (the “New Framework Agreement”) with
OVPD in respect of the provision of (i) the Event Planning Services; (ii) the property management services (the “Property
Management Services”); and (iii) the commercial properties and merchants management services (the “Commercial Properties
and Merchants Management Services”) by the Group to the OVPD Group for a term commencing on the date of the New
Framework Agreement and ending on 31 December 2023. Details of the New Framework Agreement are set out in the

Company’s circular dated 28 February 2022.
Set out below are the annual caps in respect of the Event Planning Services, the Property Management Services and the
Commercial Properties and Merchants Management Services under the Event Planning Framework Agreement and the

New Framework Agreement:

(i)  The existing annual caps under the Event Planning Framework Agreement

For the period from 28 November 2019 to 31 December 2019 RMB9.48 million
For the year ended 31 December 2020 RMB35.82 million
For the Year RMB26.05 million
For the nine months ending 30 September 2022 RMB17.11 million

(ii) The new annual caps under the New Framework Agreement

New annual caps New annual caps
for the year ending  for the year ending
31 December 2022 31 December 2023

RMB (million) RMB (million)
Event Planning Services 33.7 25.1
Property Management Services 16.5 23.8
Commercial Properties and Merchants Management Services 36.0 36.0
(the above collectively referred to as the “New Annual Cap(s)”)
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The existing annual cap for the nine months ending 30 September 2022 for the Event Planning Services under the Event Planning
Framework Agreement was replaced by the New Annual Cap for the year ending 31 December 2022 for the Event Planning Services,
which was approved in the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on 16 March 2022.

As OVPD is wholly-owned by Mr. Shi, the chairman of the Company, the chief executive officer of the Company, an executive
Director and a controlling Shareholder, and the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) in respect of the maximum
amounts of the proposed annual caps in respect of the Event Planning Framework Agreement and the New Framework Agreement
are more than 5% and exceed HK$10 million, the transactions contemplated under the Event Planning Framework Agreement and
the New Framework Agreement are subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the Year, the aggregate transaction amount (including value added tax) of the Event Planning Services was RMB21.7 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$26.0 million). The Directors confirm that the aggregate transaction amount of the Event Planning

Services with the OVPD Group for the Year had not exceeded the existing annual cap for the Year.

Continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing connected transactions which were subject to reporting, annual review

and announcement requirements under Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules:

Property Management Agreements with the OVPD Group

Pursuant to an equity transfer agreement dated 8 February 2021 entered into between Huasheng New Life, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser) and Hengsheng Xinye, an independent third party of the Company (as vendor),
Hengsheng Xinye conditionally agreed to dispose of, and Huasheng New Life conditionally agreed to acquire, the entire equity
interest in Dongsheng PMS for the consideration of RMB7,500,000. The acquisition was completed on 18 May 2021, and Dongsheng
PMS and its subsidiaries have become the Group’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries. For details of the acquisition, please refer

to the Company’s announcements dated 8 February 2021 and 20 May 2021.

Prior to the date of the Company’s announcement dated 8 February 2021 in relation to the acquisition of the entire equity interest
in Dongsheng PMS, Dongsheng PMS and its subsidiaries (each of them has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
since 18 May 2021), and the OVPD Group had entered into various property management agreements in relation to (i) the
provision of property management services for sales offices, display units, leisure areas and other related areas; (ii) the provision of
property management services for commercial and residential units and car parking spaces; and (iii) the provision of pre-delivery
property management and related services, by Dongsheng PMS and its subsidiaries to the OVPD Group (collectively the “Property
Management Agreements”). For details of the Property Management Agreements, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 8 February 2021.

As the Group had continued conducting the transactions under the Property Management Agreements during the Year, the
transactions under the Property Management Agreements are subject to reporting and annual review requirements pursuant to
Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transaction

During the Year, the Group had the following connected transaction which was subject to reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Pursuant to the New Framework Agreement, OVPD agreed to appoint the Group for the provision of, among the others, the
Commercial Properties and Merchants Management Services for a term commencing on the date of the New Framework Agreement
and ending on 31 December 2023. For the Year, the transaction amount (including value added tax) was RMB3.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$3.6 million). For details of the Commercial Properties and Merchants Management Services, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 1 December 2021.

Upon approval of the New Framework Agreement at the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on 16 March 2022, the
transactions between the Group and the OVPD Group in respect of the Commercial Properties and Merchants Management Services

became continuing connected transactions of the Company, which are subject to Rule 14A.50 to Rule 14A.59 of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the Company had complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in respect of the continuing connected transactions and the connected transaction entered into by the Group (including the

continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules) during the Year.

Confirmations from the independent non-executive Directors and auditors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions (including the continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.60 of the Listing Rules) and other fully

exempt continuing connected transactions during the Year, and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. onnormal commercial terms or better; and
3. according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.

KPMG, the auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”), was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirm that, save as disclosed above, none of the related party transactions set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules that is required to be disclosed. Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had not
entered into any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions which are required to be disclosed in this report
pursuant to the Listing Rules during the Year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee presently comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Suei Feng-jih (being the chairman of the

Audit Committee) and Mr. He Qi, and a non-executive Director, namely, Ms. Song Sining.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing and providing supervision over the financial reporting procedure
and internal control of the Group. The annual results of the Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee considers that appropriate accounting policies have been adopted, and the applicable requirements of the Listing

Rules have been complied with, in the preparation of relevant results, and sufficient disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 32 to 39 of this Annual Report, the Company had complied with
all applicable code provisions as in force during the Year under the “Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Year. The Company will continue to review and enhance its corporate governance

practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 32 to 39 of this Annual Report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Year, the Company had not involved in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim

of material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened against the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under the

Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times as of the date of this Annual Report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in the “Events after the Reporting Period” under the section headed

“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed on the Stock Exchange nor did the Company or any of its

subsidiaries purchase or sell any such shares.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible,

offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year were approved by the Board on 30 March 2022.

On behalf of the Board

Shi Baodong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

* denotes an English translation of the Chinese name for identification purpose only.
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The Company is committed to establishing good corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasise accountability and transparency to its Shareholders. Periodic review will be made to the
corporate governance practices to comply with the regulatory requirements. After reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems during the Year, the Company considered them effective and adequate.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

As at 31 December 2021, the Board consisted of seven Directors, including the chairman, Mr. Shi Baodong, who is also the chief
executive officer of the Company and an executive Director, two additional executive Directors, a non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. Not less than one-third of the Board are independent non-executive Directors. A list

of the Directors and their respective biographies is set out on pages 16 to 18 of this Annual Report.

The Board composition is regularly reviewed to ensure that it has a balance of skills and experience which is appropriate to
the requirement of the business of the Group. A balanced composition of executive Directors and non-executive Directors is
maintained to ensure independence and effective management. The Company has satisfied the relevant provision of the Listing
Rules in having at least one of the independent non-executive Directors with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

The appointment of the Directors is recommended by the Nomination Committee and approved by the Board based on a formal
written procedure and a policy of the appointment of new Director(s). Skills, experience, expertise, devotion of time and conflicts
of interests are the key factors of selecting potential candidates for Director(s). All the current non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of three years. All Directors (including non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the

Articles of Association.

The Board has adopted a policy on board diversity. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered based on objective

criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board is collectively responsible for the formulation of the Group’s strategy and overseeing the management of the business
and affairs of the Group. The Board delegates the day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group’s business
to the management of the relevant segments and divisions. The management is responsible for the implementation and adoption

of the Company’s strategies and policies. The delegated functions and tasks are periodically reviewed by the Board.

Every newly appointed Director is provided with an induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she
has adequate understanding of the businesses and operations of the Group. The Directors are also kept informed on a timely basis
of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules, as well as other relevant statutory or regulatory requirements. The

Company also encourages its Directors to participate in continuous professional development programmes.
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All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda of regular meetings. With the
assistance of the executive Directors, the chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board
meetings and have received adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.

The Board held fourteen meetings in the Year:

Attendance
(Number of
meetings attended/
Board eligible to attend)
Executive Directors:
Mr. Shi Baodong 13/14
Mr. Mo Yueming 13/14
Mr. Zhao Huining 11/14
Non-executive Director:
Ms. Song Sining 14/14
Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Dong Xiaojie 11/14
Mr. He Qi 14/14
Mr. Suei Feng-jih 14/14

Notices of at least fourteen days are given to the Directors for regular meetings, while relevant documents are sent to the Directors
not less than three days before the intended date of a board or board committee meeting. With respect to other meetings, the
Directors are given as much notices as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. The Directors can attend meetings in
person or through other means of electronic communication in accordance with the Articles of Association. The company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) ensures that the procedures are complied with all applicable rules and regulations.
Minutes of board meetings and board committees meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for inspection at

any time on reasonable notice by any Director.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and are able to obtain independent professional advices whenever they
deem necessary. Memorandums are issued to the Directors from time to time to update them with legal and regulatory changes
and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company had complied with all applicable code provisions as in force during the Year under the CG Code throughout the

Year except for deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. Despite the responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
vested in Mr. Shi during the Year, all major decisions are made in consultation with the Board. The Board considers that there

is sufficient balance of power; and the current corporate arrangement maintains a strong management position of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Specific enquiries have been made with all the Directors, who have confirmed that they complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a sound and effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and has established the Group’s internal control policies and procedures for monitoring the internal control systems. Such systems
are designated to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable

and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Recognising that a well-designed and effective system of internal control is crucial to safeguard the assets of the Company and the
Shareholders’ investment and to ensure the reliability of financial reporting as well as compliance with the relevant requirement
of the Listing Rules, a team, comprising qualified accountants and management of the Company, has been organised to carry out

the internal audit function of the Company (the “IA Team”).

Based on the assessment of risk exposure, the IA Team formulates audit plans periodically and ensures the audit programs cover
key internal control areas of key operating subsidiaries for the review by the Audit Committee at regular intervals. The scopes and

timing of audit reviews are usually determined according to risk assessment.

Special reviews may also be performed on areas of concern identified by management or the Audit Committee from time to time.
Communication channel has been established between the IA Team and the members of the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee reviews the findings and recommendations of the IA Team in their meetings held at least twice a year
and reports to the Board on such review. In respect of the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the overall
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, covering financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, which included the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the accounting

and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information
should be announced immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The Group will ensure that inside information will be
disclosed to the public through public announcements and its website as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012. Besides, all
inside information will be kept strictly confidential before disclosing to the public and only the relevant persons will have access
to such information.

The Board believes that there are no material internal controls deficiencies that may affect the Shareholders and an effective and
adequate risk management and internal control system are in place to safeguard the assets of the Group. The Group will continue
to enhance the system to cope with the changes in the business environment.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group and ensure that
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable

accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 40 to 44 of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year was audited by KPMG, of which the term of office as Auditor of the
Company will expire at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and for which it’s eligible to offer themselves for re-appointment.

For the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG in respect of statutory annual audit services (i.e. statutory annual audit
services) and non-audit services (i.e. non-audit services for the Group’s interim report) is of approximately HK$5.2 million and
HK$0.5 million respectively.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ip Pui Sum (“Mr. Ip”) resigned as the Company Secretary on 15 January 2021 and Mr. Liu Kin Wai (“Mr. Liu”) was appointed
as the Company Secretary on the same date. Mr. Liu is a full-time employee of the Company and during the Year, Mr. Ip and Mr.

Liu have taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each newly appointed Director receives an induction package

covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company.

Apart from updates on regulatory changes and governance developments provided by the Company, the Directors are encouraged
to participate in professional trainings and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the Year, training
had been provided by external professional parties. Further, the Company has continuously provided reading materials and other
updated information regarding latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulations to the Directors for their

reference and study.

The Company encourages the senior management to improve their professional knowledge by attending the external seminars
and participating in the internal trainings provided by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the Year, the Audit Committee consists of two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Suei Feng-jih (being the
chairman of the Audit Committee) and Mr. He Qi, and a non-executive Director, namely, Ms. Song Sining.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee, in accordance with its terms of reference, are substantially the same as those under
the CG Code, including review of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures, review of financial
information of the Group, review of interim and annual results of the Group, (unless expressly addressed by a separate risk
committee or the Board itself) review of the risk management and internal control systems, the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function, and other duties under the CG Code, and review of the relationship with the Auditor.

The Audit Committee was also delegated by the Board to be responsible for performing the corporate governance duties under the
CG Code, which includes developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices being in compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings in the Year in which representatives of the management were present to review the interim
and annual results, the interim report and annual report and other financial, internal control and corporate governance matters.

The Auditor was present in one of the meetings.

Attendance

(Number of

meetings attended/

Audit Committee eligible to attend)
Mr. Suei Feng-jih (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. He Qi 2/2
Ms. Song Sining 1/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee performs the remuneration function under the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee consists
of one executive Director, namely Mr. Shi Baodong, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Dong Xiaojie

(chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Suei Feng-jih.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee, in accordance with its terms of reference, are substantially the same as those
under the CG Code, which include determining the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assessing performance of
executive Directors, approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts, and making recommendations to the Board on

the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in the Year and the attendance record is set out below:

Attendance

(Number of

meetings attended/

Remuneration Committee eligible to attend)
Mr. Dong Xiaojie (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Shi Baodong 2/2
Mr. Suei Feng-jih 2/2

The Remuneration Committee reviewed the policies for the remuneration of executive Directors and senior management, including
basic salaries, discretionary performance bonus and other emoluments, based on skills, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s
affairs and performance of the individual executive Director and senior management with reference to the Company’s performance

and profitability, as well as industry practice.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee performs the nomination function under the CG Code. The Nomination Committee consists of
one executive Director, namely Mr. Shi Baodong (chairman of the Nomination Committee), and two independent non-executive

Directors, namely Mr. He Qi and Mr. Suei Feng-jih.
The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, in accordance with its terms of reference, are substantially the same as those
under the CG Code, which include reviewing the structure and composition of the Board, identification of suitably qualified Board

candidates, and determining the policy for the nomination of the Directors.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in the Year and the attendance record is set out below:

Attendance

(Number of

meetings attended/

Nomination Committee eligible to attend)
Mr. Shi Baodong (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. He Qi 2/2
Mr. Suei Feng-jih 2/2

The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of independent

non-executive Directors and made recommendations to the Board on the appointment and reappointment of the Directors.

Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the performance of their duties including
attendance at board meetings and committee meetings.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Information is communicated to the Shareholders mainly through the Company’s corporate communications (such as interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars), annual general meeting and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on

the website of the Company.

Interim reports, annual reports and circulars are sent to the Shareholders in a timely manner and are available on the website of

the Company. The Company’s website provides Shareholders with the corporate information of the Group.
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Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company to enable them to make enquiries with respect to the Company’s
affairs. Shareholders can also send their enquiries to the Company through these channels or contact Union Registrars Limited,
the Company’s share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, in case of enquiries about their respective shareholdings in the
Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s registered office in Hong
Kong at 1201B, 12/F., Tower 1 Admiralty Centre, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. Shareholders may also send such

enquiries and concerns to ovchina@orientvictory.com.cn, an email specifically set up by the Company for investor communications.

Annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM(s)”) allows the Directors to meet and communicate with Shareholders. The
Company ensures that Shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
and the external auditor also attend the AGMs to answer questions from Shareholders. AGM proceedings are reviewed from
time to time to ensure that the Company follows good corporate governance practices. Notices of AGMs are distributed to all
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to the respective AGMs. The accompanying circular sets out the details of each
proposed resolution and other relevant information as required under the Listing Rules. Voting results are posted on the Company’s
website on the day of the AGM.

The Articles of Association set out the procedures for the Shareholders to convene general meetings, move a resolution at
general meetings and propose a person for election as a Director, which are available at the Company’s corporate website

http://www.orientvictory.com.hk.

Extraordinary general meetings of the Company (“EGM(s)”) shall be convened on the requisition of any one Shareholder, who is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee), or any two or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 3 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed with convening such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may convene such meeting,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the

requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 45 to 124, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and

notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of investment properties

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Refer to Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(g).

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Key Audit Matter

The Group held investment properties, with a total carrying
amount of HK$100,599,000 as at 31 December 2021, which
accounted for 11.27% of the Group’s total assets as at that date.

The net changes in fair value recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$3,144,000.

The investment properties, which are located in Hebei Province
in Mainland China, comprise commercial premises for leasing

to commercial tenants.

The fair values of investment properties as at 31 December
2021 were assessed by the board of directors primarily based
on independent valuations prepared by a qualified external
property valuer based on certain estimates, including
capitalisation rates and prevailing market rents for comparable

commercial properties.

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter because of their significance to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and because the
determination of the fair values involves significant degree of

judgement and may be subject to management bias.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of the investment

properties included the following:

. obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared by
the external property valuers on which the management’s
assessments of the fair values of investment properties

were based;

. assessing the external property valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued
and considering their objectivity;

. with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, discussing with the external property valuer,
without the presence of management, their valuation
methodology, and assessing the key estimates and
assumptions adopted in the valuations, including
those relating to capitalisation rates and prevailing
market rents for comparable commercial properties, by
comparing these with the market available data and by
utilising the industry knowledge and experience of our
internal property valuation specialists; and

. comparing inputs to the valuation model, on a sample
basis, which included committed rents and leasing terms,

with underlying contracts.
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Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information included in the

annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis

of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision

and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Cheung Tsz Chung.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

for the year ended 31 December 2021
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”))

2021 2020
Notes $°000 $°000
(Restated)
(Note)
Continuing operations:
Revenue 4 142,272 162,429
Cost of sales and services (103,496) (137,469)
Gross profit 38,776 24,960
Other income 5 3,171 2,916
Selling, general and administrative expenses (64,112) (63,916)
Impairment of intangible assets 14 (4,213) -
Impairment of goodwill 15 - (15,404)
Share of profit of an associate 17 41 -
Net valuation gain on investment properties 13 3,144 -
Gain on acquisitions of subsidiaries 32 2,986 =
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary - 1,006
Loss from operations (20,207) (50,438)
Finance cost 6(a) (1,047) (10,937)
Loss before taxation 6 (21,254) (61,375)
Income tax 7 (5,669) 1,984
Loss for the year from continuing operations (26,923) (59,391)
Discontinued operations:
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 8(c) 6,189 14,465
Loss for the year (20,734) (44,926)
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
- continuing operations (16,597) (38,024)
- discontinued operations 6,189 14,465
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (10,408) (23,559
Non-controlling interests
__~Continuing operations (10,326) (21,367)
Loss for the year (20,734) (44,926)
Basic and diluted (loss)/earning per share 12
- continuing operations (HKO0.22 cent) (HKO0.32 cent)
- discontinued operations HKO0.05 cent HKO.11 cent
Note: The restatement of comparative information is attributable to the discontinued operations as disclosed in Note 8.
The notes on pages 53 to 124 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 December 2021

(Expressed in HK$)
2021 2020
$°000 $°000
(Restated)
(Note)
Loss for theyear (20,734) | (44,926)
Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax)
Items that may be reclassitied subsequently to profit or loss:

- exchange differences on translation of financial statements of foreign operations 16,996 44,554
__~ exchange reserve recycled to profit or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries 718 (121)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 17,714 44433
Total comprehensive income for the year (3,020) (493)
Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

— continuing operations 231 3,567

- discontinued operations 6,101 14,514
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 6,332 18081
Non-controlling interests
__~continuing operations 9352) (18,574)
Total comprehensive income for the year (3,020) (493)

Note: The restatement of comparative information is attributable to the discontinued operations as disclosed in Note 8.

The notes on pages 53 to 124 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2021

(Expressed in HK$)
2021 2020
Notes $’°000 $°000
Non-current assets
Investment properties 13 100,599 139,403
Property, plant and equipment 13 137,855 131,395
238,454 270,798
Intangible assets 14 159 4,055
Interest in an associate 17 32,916 -
Deferred tax assets 29 2,625 2,373
e 27054 277,226
Current assets
Inventories 18 16,385 214,620
Trade receivables 19 30,607 19,736
Advances to an associate 17 153,943 -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 20 160,688 109,719
Assets held for sale 23 - 47,538
Restricted bank deposits 21 1,423 2,239
Cash and cash equivalents 22 255,219 179,309
... 618265 573,161
Current liabilities
Trade payables 24 31,178 26,810
Contract liabilities 25 33,833 9,555
Other payables and accruals 26 93,975 92,560
Lease liabilities 27 9,024 1,740
Provisions 1,010 1,034
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 169,020 131,699
Net currentassets 449245 441,462
Total assets less current liabilities 723,399 718,688
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 27 62,450 435
Deferred tax liabilities 29 13,226 13,031
Provisions 1,729 2,669
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 77,405 16,135
NET ASSETS 645,994 702,553

The notes on pages 53 to 124 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2021
(Expressed in HK$)

2021 2020
Notes $°000 $°000
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 30
Share capital 64,610 64,610
Perpetual convertible securities 31 296,274 296,274
Reserves 262,490 263,936
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 623,374 624,820
Non-controlling interests 22,620 77,733
TOTAL EQUITY 645,994 702,553
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2022.
Shi Baodong Mo Yueming
Chairman Director

The notes on pages 53 to 124 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2021

(Expressed in HK$)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2021

(Expressed in HK$)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2021

(Expressed in HK$)
2021 2020
Notes $°000 $°000
(Restated)
(Note)
Operating activities
(Loss)/profit before taxation:
- continuing operations (21,254) (61,375)
- discontinued operations 8,071 15,123
(13,183) (46,252)
Adjustments for:
Valuation gains on investment properties 13 (3,144) (1,457)
Depreciation and amortisation 13,14 7,682 12,117
Impairment losses recognised on goodwill 15 - 15,404
Impairment losses recognised on intangible assets 14 4,213 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 4 1 (37)
Finance costs 6(a), 8(c) 1,919 10,995
Share of (profits)/losses of associates 8(c), 17(b) (41) 14,256
Loss/(gain) on disposal of discontinued operations 8(c) 295 (25,686)
Gain on disposal of interest in a subsidiary - (1,006)
Gain on acquisition of subsidiaries 32 (2,986) -
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 28 159 148
Changes in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 98,886 (23,230)
Decrease in assets held-for-sale 47,538 =
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (7,107) 35,454
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables (65,535) 103,293
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 5,133 (14,938)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 8,401 (5,674)
Decrease in other payables and accruals (3,660) (28,614)
Cash generated from operations 78,571 44,773
Income tax paid 29(a) (2,036) -
Cash generated from operating activities . ° 76,535 44773
The notes on pages 53 to 124 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2021

(Expressed in HK$)
2021 2020
Notes $°000 $°000
(Restated)
(Note)
Investing activities
Payments for the purchase of property, plant and equipment (17,711) (20,191)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 515 -
Net cash paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries 32 (2,355) (3,172)
Net cash outflow for deemed disposal of a subsidiary 17(a) (106) -
Net proceeds from disposal of discontinued operations,
net of cash disposal of - 357,323
Proceeds from repayment of loans to an associate - 36,323
Loans to third parties 20 (61,156) -
Proceeds from refund of/(payments for) investment prepayments 20 81,497 (81,497)
Net decrease in restricted bank deposits 816 884
Net cash generated from investing activities 1,500 289,670
Financing activities
Proceeds from/(repayment of) bank and other borrowings 22(b) 830 (137,089)
Repayment of advance from related parties 22(b) - (126,181)
Repayment of advance from a non-controlling shareholder - (14,040)
Contribution from a non-controlling shareholder 2,809 -
Distributions paid to holders of perpetual convertible securities 22(b), 31 (7,937) -
Capital element of lease rentals paid 22(b) (3,392) (3,030)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 22(b) (1,773) (156)
Interest paid 22(b) (146) (171)
Net cash used in financing activities (9,609)  (280,667)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 68,426 53,776
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 22 179,309 117,807
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 7,484 7,726
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 22 255,219 179,309

Note: The restatement of comparative information is attributable to the discontinued operations as disclosed in Note 8.

The notes on pages 53 to 124 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

Corporate information

Orient Victory Travel Group Company Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The registered office of the Company is located at P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are prin